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NOTE 

From: General Secretariat of the Council 

To: Working Party on Information 

Subject: Public access to documents 

- Confirmatory application No 30/c/01/21 
  

Delegations will find attached the: 

• request for access to documents sent to the General Secretariat of the Council on 20 May 

2021 and registered on the same day (Annex 1); 

• reply from the General Secretariat of the Council dated 8 June 2021 (Annex 2); 

• confirmatory application dated 29 June 2021 and registered on 30 June 2021 (Annex 3). 
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ANNEX 1 

[E-mail message sent to access@consilium.europa.eu on 20 May 2021 - 12:54] 

From: DELETED 

Sent: Thursday, May 20, 2021 12:54 PM 

To: TRANSPARENCY Access to documents (COMM) Access@consilium.europa.eu 

Subject: ClientEarth Request for access to documents - Opinion of the Council’s Legal Service 

 

Dear Sir/Madam,  

On behalf of ClientEarth, please find attached a request for access to documents containing the 

Opinion of the Council’s Legal Service on the Commission proposal for a Regulation amending the 

Regulation 1367/2007. 

Many thanks in advance for processing this request and be assured that we remain available to 

answer any questions you may have. 

 

Kind regards,  

 

DELETED 

 

 

mailto:access@consilium.europa.eu
mailto:Access@consilium.europa.eu
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ANNEX 2 

 

Council of the European Union 
General Secretariat 

 

 Directorate-General Communication and Information - COMM 
Directorate Information and Outreach 
Information Services Unit / Transparency 
Head of Unit 

 

 

Brussels, 8 June 2021 

DELETED 

Email: DELETED 

Ref. 21/1087-mj/mf 

Request made on: 20.05.2021 

Dear DELETED, 

Thank you for your request for access to the "document containing the Opinion of the Council’s 

Legal Service on the Commission proposal for a Regulation amending the Regulation 1367/2007".1  

 

Document 8721/21 was identified as corresponding to your request. 

 

Document 8721/21 is an opinion of the Council Legal Service (“CLS”) on the Commission proposal 

for a Regulation amending the "Aarhus Regulation" (Regulation (EC) No 1367/2006) ‒ Scope of 

application of the proposal, and 2021 Advice of the Aarhus Convention Compliance Committee 

(“ACCC”) 2 on the proposal. 

 

The opinion was issued in response to a request of the members of the Working Party on 

Environment, which sought the written opinion of the CLS on the proposal for a Regulation of the 

European Parliament and the Council amending Regulation (EC) No 1367/2006 (“the Proposal”), 

which was adopted by the European Commission on 14 October 2020.  

 

                                                 
1  The General Secretariat of the Council has examined your request on the basis of the applicable rules: 

Regulation (EC) No 1049/2001 of the European Parliament and of the Council regarding public access to 
European Parliament, Council and Commission documents (OJ L 145, 31.5.2001, p. 43) and the specific 
provisions concerning public access to Council documents set out in Annex II to the Council's Rules of Procedure 
(Council Decision No 2009/937/EU, OJ L 325, 11.12.2009, p. 35). 

2  Advice by the Aarhus Convention Compliance Committee to the European Union concerning the implementation 

of request ACCC/M/2017/3 (ACCC 2021 Advice). 
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The General Secretariat of the Council is of the view that the requested document falls within the 

remit of the exceptions relating to the protection of the decision-making process (Article 4(3), first 

subparagraph of Regulation (EC) No 1049/2001) and legal advice (Article 4(2), second indent of 

Regulation (EC) No 1049/2001). 

 

The requested document is very recent and pertains to a highly complex and politically 

sensitive decision-making process, that is currently ongoing.  

 

On 14 October 2020, the European Commission adopted a legislative proposal amending the 

Regulation (EC) No 1367/2006 to address the findings and recommendation issued by the ACCC 

in 2017 3. On 17 December 2020, the Council adopted its General Approach on the Commission's 

proposal. 

 

As part of the legislative procedure, on 9 April 2021, the European Economic and Social 

Committee issued its opinion on the Commission's proposal. On 4 May 2021, the Committee on 

the Environment, Public Health and Food Safety (ENVI Committee) adopted a report on the 

Commission's proposals proposing several amendments. A few days later, on 20 May 2021, the 

Plenary of the European Parliament adopted the report prepared by the ENVI Committee.  

 

Informal trilogues on the Commission's proposal will start soon.  

 

In such context, full disclosure of the requested document at this stage of the legislative procedure 

entails a serious risk of undermining the position of the Council in the informal trilogues, and would 

limit the necessary margin of manoeuvre in these discussions. Disclosure of the requested 

document would also undermine the mutual trust and confidence that enable the European 

Parliament, the Council and the Commission to reach an agreement at this stage of the legislative 

process. 

 

Also, even if the Council has adopted a General Approach on the text, there are still diverging 

political positions among its members. The pressure that would ensue from the disclosure of the 

requested document, which is critical to this ongoing legislative procedure, would make it more 

difficult for members of the Council to accept compromise solutions or to pursue certain options 

and therefore would affect the possibility of reaching a final agreement on the position at the stage 

of informal trilogues.  

 

Moreover, the analysis of the CLS, which is intended for an internal audience within the Council, is 

frank and discusses in detail various legal issues. Full disclosure of the legal advice would make 

known to the institutional interlocutors involved in the legislative procedure the Council's internal 

reflections and concerns and would therefore limit its options during interinstitutional exchanges. 

Therefore, there is a concrete and serious risk that full disclosure of the requested document would 

have a concrete and substantial negative impact on the Council's decision-making process. 

                                                 
3  Advice by the Aarhus Convention Compliance Committee to the European Union concerning the implementation 

of request ACCC/M/2017/3. 
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Finally, if this opinion is disclosed, certain arguments developed therein could give rise to external 

interference, as the Proposal happens to be the object of criticism by NGOs and academia. 

 

Additionally, the Commission proposal examines, among other, the obligations under the Aarhus 

Convention, and was adopted to address the mentioned findings by the ACCC, which concluded 

that the European Union “fails to comply with Article 9, paragraphs 3 and 4, of the Convention with 

regard to access to justice by members of the public because neither the Aarhus Regulation, nor 

the jurisprudence of the CJEU implements or complies with the obligations arising under those 

paragraphs”.4 Thus, the issues analysed in the requested document are not only highly 

controversial but also sensitive. 

 

The requested document also addresses an issue which has been raised in a novel and unusual 

context. It is the first time that the ACCC addressed to the European Union findings and 

recommendations regarding its compliance with Article 9(3) and (4) of the Aarhus Convention and 

questions the system of legal remedies provided for by European Union Treaties and that the 

Commission, as a result of those findings, presents a proposal “to improve the implementation of 

the Aarhus Convention”.5 

 

Consequently, it is the first time that the CLS takes a position on the issues discussed in the 

requested document, which are similarly not settled in the case-law. Those issues, which concern 

EU's system of legal remedies, are of a systemic and transversal nature and confers on the legal 

advice a wide scope going beyond the legislative file in question.   

 

Finally, the legal advice covered by this opinion deals with issues which are likely to be subject to 

litigation before the courts. This is borne out by the fact that a large number of cases have been 

brought before the CJEU in which the compatibility of the current system with the Aarhus 

Convention has been questioned. 

 

On this basis, the disclosure of the requested document would undermine the decision-making 

process pursuant to Article 4(3), first subparagraph, and the protection of legal advice pursuant to 

Article 4(2) second indent of Regulation (EC) No 1049/2001. 

 

Last, the requested document is also relevant to the preparation of the next session of the Meeting 

of the Parties under the Aarhus Convention. At the sixth session of the ACCC, the Meeting of the 

Parties decided by consensus to postpone the decision-making on the compliance by the 

European Union with its obligations under the Aarhus Convention “to the next ordinary session of 

the Meeting of the Parties to be held in 2021”.6 It is expected that this meeting of the contracting 

parties to that Convention takes place in October 2021.  

 

 

                                                 
4  Findings and recommendations of the Compliance Committee with regard to communication ACCC/C/2008/32 

(part II) concerning compliance by the European Union, paragraph 122. 
5  The Proposal, page 1. 
6  ACCC/M/2017/3. 
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On that occasion, the Meeting of the Parties may decide to declare that the European Union has 

complied (or not) with its obligations under the Aarhus Convention. To that purpose, the Meeting of 

the Parties will take into account the amendment to Regulation (EC) No 1367/2006 proposed by 

Commission, among other elements. 

 

The disclosure of the requested document would therefore reveal an assessment of the CLS 

confirming or refuting the existence of legally feasible ways for the European Union to address the 

alleged non-compliance with the Aarhus Convention. This could therefore affect the ability of the 

European Union to defend its position within the international framework set up by the Aarhus 

Convention. 

 

On this basis, the disclosure of the requested document could undermine the protection of 

international relations pursuant to the third indent of Article 4(1) (a) of Regulation (EC) 

No 1049/2001.  

 

Although Article 4(1) of Regulation (EC) No 1049/2001 does not provide for a test of balancing the 

harm to the protected interest against the public’s interest in disclosure, as far as the refusal is also 

based on the exemptions laid down in Article 4(2), second indent (protection of legal advice), and 

Article 4(3), first subparagraph (protection of decision-making process) of Regulation (EC) No 

1049/2001 and for the sake of completeness, the General Secretariat of the Council considers that, 

on balance, the principle of transparency which underlies the Regulation would not, in the present 

case, prevail over the above indicated interests so as to justify disclosure of the document. 

 

In the view of the foregoing, the General Secretariat of the Council considers that access to the 

greatest part of document 8721/21 should be refused. 

 

However, in accordance with Article 4(6) of Regulation (EC) No 1049/2001, public access may be 

granted to paragraphs 1 and 3-4 of the requested document that contain an introduction, and 

paragraphs 6 to 17, which contain an overview of the relevant legal and factual framework. 

 

You can ask the Council to review this decision within 15 working days of receiving this reply 

(confirmatory application).7 

 

Yours sincerely, 

 

 

 

Fernando FLORINDO 

 

 

Enclosure 

                                                 
7  Council documents on confirmatory applications are made available to the public. Pursuant to data protection 

rules at EU level (Regulation (EU) No 2018/1725, if you make a confirmatory application your name will only 
appear in related documents if you have given your explicit consent. 
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ANNEX 3 

[E-mail message sent to access@consilium.europa.eu on 29 June 2021 - 19:39] 

 

From: DELETED 

Sent: Tuesday, June 29, 2021 7:39 PM 

To: TRANSPARENCY Access to documents (COMM) Access@consilium.europa.eu 

Subject: RE: Ref. 21/1087-mj/mf 

Dear Sir/Madam,  

On behalf of ClientEarth AISBL, please find attached a confirmatory application in relation to the 

Council’s response to our request for access to documents.  

We remain available for any information. 

Kind regards, 

 

DELETED 
 

mailto:access@consilium.europa.eu
mailto:Access@consilium.europa.eu
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___________________________ 

 


	Fernando FLORINDO
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